ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 15, 2005
8:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative JimElKkins
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Jay Ranras
Representative Berta Gardner
Representati ve Max Gruenberg
MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative M ke Kelly

COW TTEE CALENDAR

EXECUTI VE ORDER 113

- HEARD AND HELD

OVERVI EW S) : DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATI ON: D VI SI ON OF
RETI REMENT AND BENEFI TS Tier IV PERS/ Tier Il TRS
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

Executive Order 113: See House State Affairs mnutes from
2/ 8/ 05

W TNESS REG STER
MELANI E M LLHORN, Director
D vision of Retirenent & Benefits

Department of Adm nistration
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 15, 2005



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Co-presented an overview [continued from
2/ 1/05] of the division's proposed Tier IV PERS/Tier IIl1 TRS, on
behal f of the Departnent of Adm nistration.

BOB REYNOLDS

Mercer Human Resource Consul ting

No address provi ded

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Co-presented an overview [continued from
2/1/05] of the division's proposed Tier IV PERS/ Tier |1l TRS, on
behal f of the Departnent of Adm nistration.

KEVI N BROOKS, Deputy Commi ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of the
adm nistration during the overview of the proposed Tier 1|V
PERS/ Tier 111 TRS.

KATHY LEA, Retirenent Manager
Division of Retirenent & Benefits
Department of Adm nistration
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of the
division during the overview of the proposed Tier |1V PERS/ Tier
11 TRS.

JOSEPH M BEEDLE, Vice President for Finance

O fice of Finance

Uni versity of Al aska, Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the wuniversity
during the overview of the proposed Tier IV PERS/ Tier Il TRS.

JI M JOHNSEN, Vice President for Faculty and Staff Rel ations
University of Al aska

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the university and
answered questions related to the Optional Retirenent Program
(ORP) during the overview of the proposed Tier IV PERS/ Tier I11
TRS.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 8:05:54 AM Present at the call
to order were Representatives Elkins, Lynn, Gardner, G uenberg,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 15, 2005



and Seat on. Representatives Gatto and Ranras arrived as the
nmeeting was in progress.

EXECUTI VE ORDER 113

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was
Executive Order 113.

CHAI R SEATON explained that the coomittee has before it two work
drafts that address the inclusion of the |legislative branch's
t el econmuni cati ons under the auspices of the Departnent of
Adm ni stration.

8:06:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved that the committee [place before
it] work draft Version 24 LS 0464\A. There being no objection
Version 24 LS 0464\ A was before the conmttee.

8:07: 07 AM

CHAI R SEATON explained the differences between the two work
drafts.

8:08:31 AM

CHAIR SEATON, in response to a question from Representative
Lynn, clarified that the version before the commttee [exenpts]
the legislature [from EO 113]. |If anyone, during the hearing of
the bill, wshes to also exenpt the Alaska Permanent Fund
Corporation and Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation, he/she could
do so through an anendnent at a | ater date.

8:09:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the railroad is also included
"under the executive order."

8:09:21 AM

CHAI R SEATON said his staff will find out the answer to that
guestion. He said, "Neither one of these [work drafts] nentions
the Alaska railroad.” In response to Representative Elkins, he
clarified that existing |law exenpts the railroad and neither one
of the suggested work drafts woul d change that.

OVERVI EW( S)

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 15, 2005



DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATI ON

8:10: 46 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was the
overview from the Departnment of Admnistration regarding the
Publ i ¢ Enpl oyees' System (PERS) and its proposed Tier |1V and the
Teachers' Retirenment System (TRS) and its proposed Tier I11.

8:11: 50 AM

MELANIE M LLHORN, Director, Division of Retirement & Benefits,
Departnment of Administration, presented a continuation of the
overvi ew which was begun on 2/1/05. She directed attention to
two handouts [included in the conmttee packet]: One is
[titled, "State of Alaska PERS & TRS Proposals House State
Affairs, previously referred to during the House State Affairs
Standing Conmittee's 2/1 neeting] and the other is [titled,
"Al aska Legislative Report, Response to Questions from House
State Affairs on The Public Enployees' Retirenent System and The
Teachers' Retirenment System " dated February 2005 and presented
to the commttee on this date].

8:13:16 AM

BOB REYNOLDS, Mercer Human Resource Consulting, co-presenting
the overview on behalf of the Departnent of Admnistration,
directed attention to the handout in the conmttee packet,
entitled, "State of Al aska PERS & TRS Tier Proposals, House
State Affairs.” He noted that the conmttee had received a
summary of the first portion of that handout at a previous
nmeet i ng. He reminded the commttee that two alternative tier
pl ans are described in the handout; they are called Alternative
1 and Alternative 2. M. Reynolds directed attention to slide
40, on page 22, which shows nornmal cost rates for Alternative 1.
He expl ai ned that nmeans what the costs of the system would be in
t he absence of any unfunded liability.

MR. REYNOLDS, in response to a request for clarification,
reviewed the overview shown in slide 16, on page 10, which
descri bes the conmponents of Alternative 1 and 2. In response to

a question from Representative G uenberg, he explained that both
alternatives were arrived at by the "tier conmmttee of the
boards"” to recommend to the "full boards."

8:17: 04 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 15, 2005



CHAI R SEATON clarified that the purview of the legislature is to
define the benefits and tiers, and to construct new tiers, but
it cannot dimnish accrued benefits to enployees. He rem nded
the commttee nenbers that they are looking at two [alternatives
under consideration] for the purpose of understanding the
system they are not considering the tiers as a proposal or a
bill.

8:18:19 AM

MR. REYNOLDS returned to slide 16, on page 10. He noted that
subsequent slides, on pages 11-21 provide nore detail. In
response to a previously stated question regarding what norma
cost rates nmean, he directed attention to slide 2, on page 1,
whi ch shows the enployer contribution rates for PERS, and slide
3, on page 2, which shows the enployer contribution rates for

TRS. He said these slides show the calculated actuarial
contribution rates needed to fully fund the systens after a 25-
year period. The rates are conposed of two conponents: a

normal cost rate, which provides for benefits expected to be
earned by active nenbers during the fiscal year; and the past
service rate, which is the part of the contribution that is
intended to pay off the unfunded liability over 25 years. He
explained that the past service rate would not exist if the
systens were fully funded; it is the "make-up" part of the
contri bution.

8:21: 26 AM

MR. REYNOLDS, in response to remarks by Chair Seaton, confirned
that the contributions showmn on slides 2 and 3 relate to
enpl oyer contributions, and in each of the two systens, enployee
menbers make contributions, as well.

8:21:36 AM

CHAI R SEATON added that the nornmal cost rate is expected to pay
100 percent of the retirees' benefits.

MR.  REYNOLDS responded, "Yes, «correct, together wth the
menbers. This is the enployer's portion of that."

8:22: 07 AM

MR, REYNCLDS, in response to a question from Representative
Gatto, said the benefit is expected to cover the additional

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 15, 2005



years post retirenent. He said the idea is to fund a nenber's
benefit during his/her working lifetine.

MR. REYNOLDS redirected attention to slide 40, on page 22. He
noted that the nunbers shown in parentheses are related to the
current program He noted that the four conponents of
Alternative 1 are: the nedical normal cost rate, the defined
benefit normal cost rate, the defined contribution rate, and the
heal th rei nbursenent account (HRA). He highlighted details of
the slide.

8:25: 50 AM

MR. REYNCOLDS, in response to a question from Chair Seaton,
explained that the nedical normal cost rates for TRS and PERS
are conceptually the same program However, the PERS "others”
menbers have a later normal retirenment date, so TRS provides
medi cal benefits for Medicare for a longer period prior to
eligibility; therefore, the teachers' benefits cost a little bit
nore, because they are being provided over a |onger period of
time prior to Medicare eligibility. He concluded, "So, it
relates to the retirenent ages that are built in to the two
systens - not the |level of the nmedical benefits thenselves."”

8:26:48 AM

MR. REYNOLDS, in response to a followup question from Chair
Seaton, directed attention to slide 17, on page 11, which shows
the normal retirement for both PERS and TRS. PERS has a "25-
year - and-out" system

8:27:51 AM

CHAI R SEATON i ndicated that "the differences" are structural and
are nostly related to the nunber of years before retirenent.

8:28:13 AM

MR. REYNCLDS replied, "That's correct for both the medical and
the defined benefit; and then, of course, the costs for the
defined contribution conponent are solely related to the actua
contribution level itself "

8:28:51 AM

MR. REYNCLDS, in response to a question from Chair Seaton,
explained that the commttee - nmade up of two nenbers from each

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 15, 2005



board - arrived at different recomendations for the two
systens, in part based on overall cost |evel objectives; their
focus was to decide what |evel of benefits and what ultimte
cost level to the enployer was desired.

8: 30: 08 AM

MR. REYNOLDS directed attention to slide 41, on page 23, which
shows simlar information to slide 40, but for Alternative 2.
He noted that the defined benefit conponent was elim nated.
What woul d have been the costs for the defined benefit portion
of Alternative 1 was conbined with the defined contribution
conponent . He noted that the costs for the nedical conponent
are the sane as for Alternative 1; the costs for the defined
contribution portion are higher, because of the inclusion of the
defined benefits conponent; and the costs for the HRA are the
sane as Alternative 1. Alternative 1, although it is expected
to have average costs, would be expected to be nore volatile and
| ess predictable than Alternative 2.

8:32:19 AM

MR. REYNCLDS, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, said, given a choice, enployees wuld choose a
retirement plan that is nost advantageous to thenselves.
Typi cal |y, ol der, | onger - servi ce menber s woul d choose
Alternative 1, because nore benefit would be delivered to those
menbers through the defined benefit plan, whereas younger,
shorter-service nenbers would tend to favor Alternative 2, where
benefits would build up faster. He clarified that there is
not hi ng about either of the alternative prograns that woul d nean
all nmenbers woul d choose one alternative over the other.

8:34: 02 AM

M5. MLLHORN noted that when the neeting to discuss new tiers
took place |last Novenber, there were a nunber of enployers
present. She said the needs of each group represented by an
enpl oyer were different based upon that area's popul ation. She
of f ered exanpl es.

8:36: 00 AM
CHAI R SEATON recalled that the analysis of the nenber surveys

showed that Alternative 2 was seen as nore clearly
under st andabl e. He said, "It's a lot easier to understand a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 15, 2005



defined contribution program than it is the mx of defined
benefit and defined contribution.”

M5. M LLHORN concurr ed.

8. 37: 05 AM

M5. MLLHORN, in response to a question from Representative
Gruenberg, directed attention to a handout in the conmmttee
packet, entitled, "Alaska Legislative Report Response to

Questions from House State Affairs on The Public Enployees

Retirement System and The Teachers' Retirenment System" dated
February 2005. She noted that 20 pages, beginning on page 22,
show the individual enployer responses. Beginning on page 40 is
a list of unions that were asked to participate in the survey.
She expl ained that sonme of them did not choose to participate.
She offered further details.

8:38: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said young people feel they will never see
the noney they pay into social security. He asked if there is
the sane thought with respect to PERS and TRS.

8:39: 39 AM

M5. MLLHORN said she doesn't think so. Peopl e working under
the current TRS tiers vest after eight vyears. The average
credited service under TRS is 10.5 years, so nobst of those
parties do vest and do receive benefits.

8:41: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked which alternative the state would
pi ck.

8:42:15 AM

M5. M LLHORN suggested that the deputy conm ssioner address that
questi on.

8:42: 33 AM
CHAI R SEATON rem nded Representative Guenberg that it's not the
admnistration that is comng forward with a proposal, but the

| egislature that is looking at the long-term problem of $5.6
billion unfunded liability and structural problens.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 15, 2005



8:43:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would still like to hear from
the adm ni stration.

8:43: 46 AM

KEVI N BROOKS, Deputy Conm ssioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Department of Adm nistration, stated that the departnent and the
adm nistration do support the formation of new tiers. He said
the admnistration's belief is that switching the nmakeup of the
tiers will provide nore predictability related to future costs.
He said, "W do believe that there's an interest in younger
workers comng into the work force for defined contribution
plans that provide portability. And really, all this is in
recognition of a very significant $5 billion-plus problem that
we have to cone to grips wth." In response to a question from
Representative Guenberg, he <confirmed that he thinks the
defined contribution plan [Alternative 2] would be the preferred
option for the admnistration."”

8:45: 48 AM

M5. MLLHORN returned to the handout showi ng the slides. She
directed attention to a table on page 24, which shows the normnal
cost rate and the actuarial conputed rate from fiscal year 1983
(FY 83) through FY 06 for PERS and TRS. She highlighted
sections of the table.

8:47:16 AM

MR. REYNOLDS noted that page 24 shows a history of the nornal
cost rates over tine. He pointed out that regardi ng any nedi cal
conponent in either alternative and the defined benefit
conponent in Alternative 1, the normal costs are subject to
changes in the population and changes over tinme in actuarial
assunpti ons.

8:48: 57 AM

MR. REYNOLDS, in response to a request for clarification nade by
Representati ve G uenber g, st ated t hat t he chronol ogi cal
variation relates to the fact that the costs are being nodel ed
actuarially. Over tinme, he explained, the population of the
system changes, which affects the cost of the nodel.
Furthernore, the assunptions that are being put into the nodel

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 15, 2005



have changed. In particular, there have been increases in
popul ation |ongevity that have affected the calculations, as
well as a change in the expectation into the future in the rise
in level of nedical costs. M. Reynolds said the difference
between the normal cost rate and the actuarial conputed rate is
related to the systemis funded status at a given point in tine.
The difference between the normal cost rate and the conputed
rate is the past service rate; therefore, if the system has "an
underfunding,” that neans there wll be a past service
contribution needed, in addition to the normal cost rate, to
provide for the long-term funding of the system He offered an
exanple fromthe table on page 24.

8:51:23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG noted that the Jlast four years
actuarial conmputed rate for PERS shows the greatest change. He
asked if that represented a change in actuaries.

8:52: 00 AM

MR. REYNOLDS answered no. He said it represented a change in
both circunstances of the fund and sonme of the underlying
assunptions occurring at the sane tine. He explained that, by
ci rcunstances, he neans health care costs and assets of the
fund. He said actuaries periodically examne the assunptions
and make recommendations to the boards. Periodic actuari al
audits are perforned by an independent firm that my reconmend
changes. He said, "The conbination of those changes and the
circunstances that | previously described did result in this
i ncrease that you see on the last four lines of the chart."”

8:53:34 AM

MR. REYNCLDS, in response to a question from Chair Seaton,
provi ded further details. In response to a followup question
from Chair Seaton, he said he would ask the division to supply
information relating to the last three years and ten years and
an analysis of the factors that have contributed to changes in
the actuarial rates, as well as the funded status of the
syst ens.

8:54: 34 AM

M5. MLLHORN noted that the valuation report shows an item zed
change by experience and assunption changes, which leads to the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 15, 2005



cal cul ated rate. She said she could provide the sunmmary sheets
to the committee.

8:55:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said the commttee needs to know why
there was such a dramatic change in the actuarial conputed rate
bet ween 2001 and 2002.

8:56: 32 AM

M5. MLLHORN, in response to a question from Chair Seaton
regarding "how nuch of that was driven by the health care
assunptions,” recollected that "that change increased the
enpl oyer contribution rate by 8.5 percent.” She directed
attention to the PERS valuation of 1996, "which is the fiscal
year 1999," and noted that that was the time that the
| egi sl ature adopted Tier II1l, and that is the point at which the
normal cost rate decreased. Pointing to TRS in 1991, "which is
the fiscal year 1994," she noted that the |egislature adopted
Tier 1, and thus the normal cost rate showed a reduction.

8:57:52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if there would be an expectation
that sonme of the "massive discrepancy” shown between the years
2001 to 2002 would be resolved if the President's social
security plan is adopted and many nore people have investnents
in the stock market.

8:.58:31 AM

MR. REYNOLDS said he cannot predict what changes there will be
to social security and "what inpact that wll have on the
mar ket s. " He surmised that the influence that [adopting the
President's plan] mght have is to potentially lead to a
revision of sonme of the underlying assunptions. He noted that
one of the key assunptions that [Mercer] nmkes at arriving at
the results is the rate of earnings that wll occur in the
future, and it is currently assuned that those investnents in
the future will earn 8.25 percent, which is based on an analysis
of how the funds are currently allocated and a detail ed anal ysis
of the expectations for each asset class. He said, "If

sonething were to occur that would lead us to revise our
expectations of the earnings of the fund in the future, then
that could affect these results.” He offered an exanple. He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 15, 2005



noted that if the funds earn less, than nore would need to cone
fromthe enpl oyers, and vice versa.

8:59: 57 AM

CHAI R SEATON recognized that Representative Mke Kelly joined
the conmttee table.

9: 00: 10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the actuarially conputed rate data
is used to adjust the nornmal cost rate.

9: 00: 58 AM

MR. REYNOLDS said the actuarial nunber, as well as "all the
conponents” are reported to the PERS and TRS boards. He said
there is a correlation between the nunbers, but there is a
considerable variability. He stated that there are actuarial
techniques being used to attenpt to mtigate the volatility;
W thout those techniques, the nunbers would be even nore
vol atile, because a |arge nunber of hard-to-predict influences
are in play. He offered exanples.

9:03: 35 AM

MR. REYNCOLDS, in response to a question from Chair Seaton,
confirmed that the assunptions that wunderlie [the normal cost
rate and the actuarial conputed rate] are the sane. The only
difference is that the conputed rate takes into account the
funding deficit or surplus.

9:04:17 AM

MR, REYNCLDS, in response to a question from Representative
Kelly, reported that the estimated actual return for FY 04 was
approximately 15.1 percent for the two systens. He said he
doesn't yet know a year-to-date return or end-of-year estimate
for FY 05. He said the assunption is that, over the course of
the year, the investnents will earn 8.25 [percent], but he said
there will be variability. In response to a followup question
from Representative Kelly asking if he expects an excess of 10
percent, M. Reynolds said he has no expectation of what the
markets will do between now and June 30.

9: 05: 10 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 15, 2005



MR. REYNOLDS directed attention to slides 43 and 44, on page 29,
whi ch show cost projections of actuarial rates for PERS and TRS,
respectively. He explained that the solid |ine shows the
projected increase of rates for the current plan, while the
broken line shows the projected path with the proposed new tier.
He expl ained that any cost reductions would take sonme tine to be
fully realized.

9:08: 57 AM

CHAI R SEATON observed that it would be 2020 before a school
district, for exanple, wuld see any difference in the
contribution rate for an enployee, and that difference would be
about 2 percent. He offered his wunderstanding that that's
because the graphs assune that the enployer contribution rate
for all enployees will be the sane because it's paying off the
unfunded liability, and the only difference is that there wll
be a normal cost differential - a difference in the normal cost

rate between the existing systemand the new tier.
9:10:49 AM
MR. REYNCLDS said he thinks that's a good anal ysi s.
9:11: 32 AM

M5. MLLHORN, in response to a question from Chair Seaton,
confirmed that the feedback from enployers has been that they
recogni ze [the proposals for a new tier] would not inmediately
change the enployer contribution rate, but they advocate for a
new tier because it's necessary to do so. She |isted specific
enpl oyees who had expressed that interest. In response to a
followup question regarding whether the enployers had any
suggestions for |lowering the enployer cost rate, she said the
focus was just on the two alternatives presented.

9:12: 32 AM

CHAIR SEATON asked if there had been any suggestions nade
regarding | owering the enployer contribution rate.

9:12:52 AM

M5. MLLHORN offered her recollection that the focus had just
been on the two alternatives.

9:13:11 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 15, 2005



MR. REYNCOLDS turned to page 21 of the previously nentioned
handout containing responses to questions, which shows the
retirement program s financial managenment as including: funding
policies, which cover assunptions and nethods; the investnent
policy, which covers assets; and the benefits policy, which
covers plan provisions. He stated that the costs of the system
are directly related to the benefits. The noney to provide
those benefits conmes from two places: the contributions to the
system - from the nmenbers and the enployers - and the investnent
earnings. Assuming the investnent policy is as efficient as it
can be, there are only two places to look to reduce costs over
time: reducing the benefits, which a new tier would acconpli sh,
or putting in nore cash up front.

9:16: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said, "All these nunbers that you give are
t he enpl oyers' contribution net of the enployees' contribution.”

9:16: 51 AM

MR.  REYNOLDS confirned that these <charts show figures for
enpl oyers; the nenber costs would be "on top of that.”

9:17: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY suggested another source could be from the
exi sting, active enpl oyees.

9:17: 24 AM

MR. REYNOLDS said he has been asked to nodel that and wll
provide charts. He said it's not rocket science; if the current
rates are 10 percent and the nenber rates are increased to 15
[ percent], then, over the long term it would be expected that
the enpl oyer rates woul d decrease by that 5 percent.

9:17:45 AM

CHAI R SEATON noted that the figures are set once a year, and he
expl ai ned how the bar charts can be used. He also noted a | ega
opinion is available in the conmmttee packet and on
Representative Kelly's web site. He offered further details.

9:20: 47 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 15, 2005



M5. MLLHORN, in response to a question from Chair Seaton,
confirmed that at the tine that the new tiers were being
formul ated, the inpression was that an enployee contribution
rate could not be changed, because that had been the
interpretation at the tine. She said that has been corrected
through the opinion from Legislative Legal and Research
Servi ces.

9:20: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said it's fair to say that that's an
opinion [from Legislative Legal and Research Services] which may
be unpopular with sone.

9:23: 23 AM

M5. MLLHORN, in response to a question from Chair Seaton,
explained that "IMP" [shown on many columms of the spreadsheets
in the "response to questions” handout] stands for "inportance."

9:24: 10 AM

CHAI R SEATON offered his understanding that [the colums on the
spreadsheets in the "response to questions” handout] correlate
W th t he sl ides in [the "tier pr oposal s" handout ] .
Specifically, question 1 on the spreadsheet correlates wth
slide 46, on page 34.

9:24: 43 AM
M5. M LLHORN confirnmed that is correct.
9: 25: 50 AM

MR. REYNOLDS noted that slides 46-71 show results of the PERS
survey, while slides 73-100 show results of the TRS survey.
Each slide shows one question's response. The [spreadsheet]
shows how each enployer responded. He explained that on slide
46, the letters "A" through "E' show where the five |[argest
enpl oyers wei ghed in. At the bottom of the slide are coments
that were taken verbatim  The key inplications are concl usions
that Mercer Human Resource Consulting drew fromthe survey.

9:28:34 AM

CHAI R SEATON observed that the bar chart at the top right corner
of the slide shows the |evel of inportance. He surm sed that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- February 15, 2005



all enployees may score on one side of a question; however, they
m ght consider that the issue is of |ower inportance when
considering "the design of the plan.”

9: 29: 08 AM
MR REYNCOLDS answered that's correct.
9:29: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that nedical coverage consistently
scored high in level of inportance for enployers.

9:29:36 AM

MR. REYNOLDS reveal ed that one of the key conclusions that was
drawn by the commttee from the survey was that the plan should
provide sone |evel of nedical coverage. One of the other key
conclusions was that further cost sharing of the cost of that
coverage with nenbers m ght be in order.

9: 30: 03 AM

CHAI R SEATON noted that slide 98 shows that predictability and
stability also scored high in inportance.

9:31: 29 AM

MR. REYNCLDS, in response to a question from Representative
Kelly, said, "These are what we think is the nost Ilikely
outcone, but as you know, the nedian only shows you what the
mddle is - it doesn't show you how wi de the spread of possible
outcones is." A programis subject to a great deal of potenti al
change and volatility, based on future denographics, health
care, and "911" - a change in the investnents.

9:32: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY responded, "So, that chart seens to nme to
have a little Novocain in it." He said there could be another
$5.6 billion problem "built into that down the road," because

"they are assunptions.”
9:32: 32 AM

MR. REYNOLDS concurr ed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 15, 2005



9:32: 40 AM

CHAI R SEATON suggested | ooking at the base changes in the system

that really inpact it. He offered exanples, including taking
the average of +the highest three years for retirenent and
changing that in other tiers to nore years. He indicated that

there's nothing wong with taking enploynent at a higher rate,
but expressed that a system "that allows these things to go in
and be a charge against systeni is a problem

9: 35: 06 AM

M5. MLLHORN explained the various tier index averages for
various enployees and how different calculations are done
depending on the tier.

9: 36: 09 AM

MR. REYNOLDS, in response to a question from Chair Seaton, said
nmoving from three years to five reduces system costs for the
nonmedi cal conponent by about 4 percent. He continued as
fol |l ows:

The commttee did | ook at the whole issue of what the
averagi ng period should be, and basically was wei ghing

two factors: One was keeping people's benefits as
current as possible wth inflation during their
working lifetinme, but mtigating the influence of
| arge changes in conpensation in the |last few years of
enpl oynent . A three-year average is a lot nore

subject to increase if there's a large bonus paid in
the |l ast year than a career average, for exanple.

And the alternative that the conmttee arrived at in
the defined benefits conponent of Alternative 1 was to
use a career average - an average of pay over the
nmenber's entire career - but to index that pay forward
to retirenent with inflation, simlar to the way
social security does the calculation. Social security
takes your pay in any given year, [and] then ratchets
it up with inflation to age 61, roughly, before

conputing the average. It's a little bit conplicated.
The issue is that, in trying to acconplish sonething,
you ... build in a lot of conplexity into the system
you can sonetinmes over-engineer it. But in this case,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 15, 2005



the commttee did arrive at a career average rather
than a final three or five.

9:37: 50 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked, "Depending on how the [Consuner Price |ndex]
(CPI) was, ... it could basically eat up ... nost of vyour
i nvestnment return, couldn't it?" Chair Seaton cal cul ated that

with an assuned 8.25 investment return and an inflation rate of
4 percent, the return would be 4.25 percent.

9: 38: 33 AM

MR. REYNOLDS answered that's correct. He added, "On the other
hand, if it's built into the system we can attenpt to predict
and fund for it." He offered an exanple of the post-retirenent
pensi on adj ust nents. He noted that in contrast to that are the
ad hoc post-retirenent pension adjustnments (PRPAs), for which
fundi ng predictions cannot be nade.

9: 39:46 AM

M5. MLLHORN, in response to a question from Chair Seaton, said
the ad hoc PRPAs are recommended by the PERS and TRS boards to
the comm ssioner of admnistration who has the authority to
grant or not grant them She noted that the ad hoc PRPAs have

been rejected for the past two years. She expl ai ned that they
are a significant cost factor; over the last 14 years, 8 ad hoc
PRPAs have been granted. If the last year's recomended PRPA
had to been granted it would have cost approximtely $34 mllion

to PERS in accrued liability and approximately $37 mllion in
accrued liability to TRS She indicated that plan changes have
represented approximately $500 nmillion "over the l|ast years,"
and noted that the admnistration has asked Mercer Hunman
Resource Group to "determ ne what the breakout is between the ad
hoc PRPA and the other plan changes through |egislation.” In
response to followup questions from Chair Seaton, she said the
authority for the ad hoc PRPAs are found in AS 39.35.475 and are
specific to and affect only Tier I PERS and TRS nenbers.

9:42:16 AM
CHAI R SEATON nentioned cost-of-living adjustnments for regiona
enpl oyees and asked if contributions are nmade on those expenses

and if they are then included into the base wage on which
retirement is calcul ated.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 15, 2005



9:43: 15 AM

KATHY LEA, Retirenent Manager, Division of Retirement &
Benefits, Departnent of Admnistration, said a geographic

differenti al can be included in a nenber's retirenment
calculation if that menber has served half his/her service in an
area with a differential. Contributions are taken from their
conpensation as the nenber receives it. She added, "If they do
not qualify for wusing the geographic differential in their
calculation, the <contributions that have been nmade on that
portion are refunded to them™ In response to a question from

Chair Seaton regarding overtine pay, she confirnmed that that is
al so "cal cul ated on PERS. "

9:44: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO indicated that police in Anchorage are
allowed to work overtine on a seniority basis and, because of
that, are able to put in extravagant weeks in order to "bill
their pay up to as high as they can get it."

9:45:41 AM

MR. REYNOLDS explained that the pay increases in the system are
averaged, which would include those pay increases that are
occurring in the last three years of enploynent, thus, if a
pattern has been occurring, it 1is predictable and can be
accounted for.

9:47:14 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if it would be difficult to get a conparison
bet ween a sanple popul ation, such as police and fire enpl oyees,
in order to see the structural analysis of the system if over-
time is counted in PERS or if it isn't.

9:47: 36 AM

MR. REYNOLDS responded that the only analysis done is a periodic
anal ysis, which is perforned every five years.

9:47: 57 AM
CHAIR SEATON asked  Ms. MIllhorn to prepare "a little
instructional sheet" for the commttee. He indicated that he

has | ooked on the adm nistration's web site, but the information
is quite | engthy and conpl ex.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 15, 2005



M5. M LLHORN said, "Sure."
9:48: 34 AM

JOSEPH M BEEDLE, Vice President for Finance, Ofice of Finance,
University of Alaska, Fairbanks, surmsed that part of the
interest on the conmttee's part is in response to a recent
address by the university's President Mark Ham |lton, wherein he
stated that approximately $87 mllion of unfunded liability has
been avoided because of the wuniversity's Optional Retirenment
Plan (ORP). He noted that ORP was adopted approximtely 15
years ago and is a defined contribution alternative to the plans
previ ously discussed by the commttee. He said ORP is designed
for "regular" faculty and executive staff. The wuniversity's
obligation under ORP is to make contributions tied to a rolling
three-year average of the TRS rate. There is no health benefit
provi ded under ORP. He clarified, "Certainly the calculations
under TRS [assune] a health benefit; so the calculation is based
on sonething that provides a benefit to include health.”
Vesting is inmmediate. M. Beedle stated, "This is an enpl oyee's
pl an choi ce. Whet her they participate in ORP, TRS, or PERS is
irrevocable; once the enployee chooses at tine of hire, then
that is irrevocable.”

MR. BEEDLE said the advantages to the university include: an
enhanced ability to conpete in the national mnmarket for top

faculty and admnistrators wth other uni versities; and
corporations offering to find contribution plans, such as a
401K. The wuniversity has the advantage of relieving its
liability wunder the retirement plan from the obligation to
provide for a costly health benefit upon retirenent. He said
the ORP participants prefer the plan, because it provides full
portability. The enployee is vested on day one and whatever
he/ she contributes, along with whatever is contributed by the
enpl oyee, will be owned by the enployee. The funds can be taken

i medi ately by the enployee and, even if the enployee dies upon
retirement, the funds would go to his/her estate. The funds are
also fully portable to an IRA or self-directed type of

i nvest nment . One concern is attracting those who may not stay
t hrough tenure. M. Beedle noted that approxi mately 800 people
participate in ORP and it represents approximately $50 mllion

of base salary or 25 percent of the university's enployee base.
He stated that it's been utilized on a voluntary basis in a
significant way. Faculty conposes approximately 90 percent of
participants, with the remaining 10 percent being executives.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 15, 2005



9:53: 19 AM

MR. BEEDLE directed attention to a [one-page, two-sided] handout
in the commttee packet fromthe University of Al aska, entitled,
"Sunmary of the Optional Retirenent Program” The ot her side of
the summary shows a retirenment program conparison chart, which
conpares TRS, PERS, and ORP. The chart conpares the foll ow ng:
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) governing code; social security
repl acenent plan; State of Alaska governing code; eligibility;
vesting; health coverage after retirenent; contribution rate
setting authority; nethodology for setting rates; rates for FY
04; projected rates for FY 05; subj ect of bar gai ni ng;
participation rate; and average age. M. Beedle offered details
regardi ng the conparison chart.

9:55:24 AM

MR. BEEDLE noted that the university also has a pension plan
that is simlar to the State of Al aska's Supplenental Benefits
System (SBS) pl an. The difference, he explained, is that the
university has capped its plan at $42,000, so it's about $3,200
a year, per enployee, at nmaxinmum - nearly half the anmount of
that of the state. He said the university's retirenent benefits
will grow from approxinmately $27 mllion in [FY] 05 to $65.5
mllion in FY 08. Currently, retirement benefits account for
approximately 18 percent of the wuniversity's total benefits
package. Sal ary mekes up the majority, and health benefits are
12.5 percent. Total conbined benefits at the wuniversity,
including all staff benefits, are approxi mately 33 percent.

MR. BEEDLE, in response to a question from Chair Seaton
confirmed that the university does have a health plan for those
enpl oyees currently enpl oyed.

9:57: 36 AM

CHAI R SEATON offered his understanding that about 25 percent of
[the university's] enployees have said they would rather select
the three-year TRS average as a defined contribution plan,
rat her than having a portion of that noney as a health plan.

9:58: 20 AM
MR. BEEDLE confirnmed that is true. In response to a follow up
guestion from Chair Seaton, he said the other 75 percent have

not had the option to make that selection, because [ORP] is
restricted to "regular” faculty and executive enployees of the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 15, 2005



uni versity system He clarified that the 25 percent previously
mentioned is 25 percent of the total enployees.

CHAI R SEATON asked what percent of the "regular" and executive
enpl oyees have opted for [ ORP]

MR BEEDLE deferred to M. Johnsen.
9:59: 04 AM

JIM JOHNSEN, Vice President for Faculty and Staff Relations,
University of Alaska, directed the conmttee's attention to the
participation rate of ORP on the conparison chart. He expl ai ned
that at the tine the chart was prepared, there were 725
participants, 90 percent of whom were faculty nenbers.

10: 00: 21 AM

CHAI R SEATON clarified that he wanted to know what percentage of
t hose who coul d select ORP actually have.

10: 00: 34 AM

MR. JOHNSEN answer ed:

There are approximately 250 nenbers of the [Al aska]

Community College Faculty Union, 44 percent of whom
have selected ORP; approximately 950 nenbers of the
United Academ c Faculty Union, 61 percent of whom have
selected ORP, and then about 120 or so tota

executives, 76 percent [of whon] have sel ected [ORP].

10: 01: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked why the nost hi ghly paid
enpl oyees are in ORP while sonme of the |ower paid enployees are
not even eligible.

10: 01: 34 AM

MR. BEEDLE said it was unknown originally who would participate.
He expl ai ned that those who choose ORP are choosing to sacrifice
having a [built-in] health care plan and to manage their own
retirement. He said it has been rewarding to see self-selection
by the faculty. In response to a followup question from
Representative G uenberg regarding what the university is doing
for those who do not make as mnuch noney, he said they

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- February 15, 2005



participate in either PERS or TRS He said, "I think it's a
great challenge to consider this new tier opportunity the state
is considering and the education that would go along with it to
al l ow enpl oyees the opportunity to nake a decision on a defined
contribution that then they help determne - as they do with SBS

[and] the university pension - where to invest it and how to
prepare for their future.”

10: 05: 10 AM

MR. BEEDLE added that one attribute that the university did not
anticipate was the elevation of health costs. He said:

It's based on TRS for a paynent, so it has the
potential of exceeding the maximum allowed by IRS for
a contribution, and we would have this artificial
limtation under ORP. W also appreciate that we did
not anticipate the growi ng cost. So, we've avoided
this wunfunded actuarial liability, but we have not
avoided the cap - we have not been able to stop the
cost at a certain level.

MR. BEEDLE said he is intrigued by the state's studies on a
defined contribution that would be at "a sumcertain anount."”
Regarding ORP, he indicated that there mght be an opportunity
for the university to "fix that anmount” and to consider "other
enpl oyee options to join this plan.”

10: 06: 38 AM

CHAI R SEATON clarified that "we're" tal king about the cost rate,
plus the unfunded liability section of TRS. He asked, "So, is

that what raps you into ... that section; instead of having a
three-year normal cost rate, you take the three-year whatever
the rate is, including the rate to pay off +the unfunded

liabilities?"

10: 07:12 AM

MR. BEEDLE responded as foll ows:

The bonus ... of this current extraordinary event in
time will accrue to new enployees that benefit by ORP
at a very high rate as conpared to the private sector

And so, ... the snake swallowng this balloon wll
benefit, and pass, and accrue to those new enpl oyees
that may not experience this sane bubble effect that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- February 15, 2005



the state and we are experiencing in PERS and TRS.
So, ... in hindsight ..., it mght have been sonething
that, as a finance person, | would have reconmmended a
nunber not to exceed, other than sinply that inposed
by the RS as a maxi num

10: 08: 11 AM

CHAIR SEATON said the commttee wll "take this under
consi deration."”

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
10: 08: 30 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 15, 2005



